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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Athena Infrastructure Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Athena Infrastructure Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 march 2025, and the Statement of Profit and
Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash
Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of material
accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as "the financial
statements").

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accountng principles generally
accepted in India including Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS”) specified under section 133 of the
Act, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 march 2025, its loss and total comprchcnsivg
income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (‘SA’s) specified under scction
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financial statements undet the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled
our other cthical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

tnformation Other than the Tinancial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. Other information does
not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereor.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

I, hased on the work we have performed on the other information obtained prior to the date of this
auditor’s report, we conclude that there is 2 material misstatement of this other information, we arc




required to report that fact. Reporting under this section is not applicable as no other information is
obtained at the date of this auditor’s report.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

"The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated. in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows
of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
ot error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s abiliey 1o
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee thar an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
1s sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecung a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control,

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(1) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place
and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.




* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw atténtion in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going,
concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Financial Statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
Financial Statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in
() planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (i) to evaluate
the effect of any identified misstatements in the Financial Statement.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related

safeguards.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the ‘Annexure
A’, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

{a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books except for the matters stated in the paragraph h(vi) below
on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income,
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with Ind AS specified under Section 133 of
the Act.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 march 2025 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 march 2025 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.




(f) The modifications relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith are as

stated in the paragraph (b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) of the Act and paragraph h(vy)
below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014

(2) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of

the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
‘Annexure B’ Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness
of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting.

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of

iv.

V1.

the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial
statements as at 31 march 2025— Refer Note 44 to the financial statements.

. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were

any material foreseeable losses as at 31 march 2025.

- There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection

Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 march 2025.

(a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are
material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (etther from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any
other person or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or atherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are
material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company from any person or
entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing
or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Parcy (“Ultdmate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiarics:

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations
under sub-clause (1) and (i) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material
misstaternent.

. The Company has not declared and paid dividend during the year.

As stated in Note 49 to the financial statements and based on our examination which included test
checks, the Company, in respect of financial year commencing on 1 April 2024, has used an accountng
softwares for maintaining its books of account which have feature of recording audit trail (edit log)
facility and the same has been operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the
softwares except that, the audit trail logs were not enabled for changes made using privileged access
rights for direct data changes at the database level. Further, during the course of our audit we did not
come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with other than the consequential impact
of the exception given above.




Furthermore, the audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for
record retention except that the audit trail at the database level for the Company has not been preserved
in the accounting software for the period 1 April 2023 to 31 March 2024.

(1) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the requirements
of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company did not pay any remuneration to its Directors during the year.

For Agarwal Prakash & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 005975N

Praveen Keshav
Partner
Membership No. 535106

UDIN: 25535106BMKQCG8693

Place: Delhi
Date: 21 May 2025
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(i)

(1)

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report

With reference to the Annexure A referred to in the Iridependent Auditor's Report to the members of
the Company on the financial statements for the year ended 31 march 2025, based on the audit
procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view on the financial statements of
the Company and taking into consideration the information and explanations given to us and the books
of account and other records examined by us in the normal course of audit, and to the best of our
knowledge and belief, we report that:

(a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing records showing full particulars, including
quanttative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars,

(b) The Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the management during the
year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In our opinion, the frequency of
verification of the property, plant and equipment is reasonable having regard to the size of the
Company and the nature of its assets.

(c) The Company does not have any immovable property. Accordingly, clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not
applicable.

(d) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment (including right-of-use
assets) and intangible assets during the year

(e) According to the information, explanation and representation provided to us and based on
verification carried out by us, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the Company for
holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and
rules made thereunder.

(@ According to the information, explanation and representation provided to us and based on
verification carried out by us, the management has conducted physical verification of inventory at
reasonable intervals during the year and no material discrepancies between physical inventory and book
records were noticed on physical verification.

(b) According to the information, explanation and representation provided to us and based on
verification carried out by us, the Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of
five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current

assets. Accordingly, clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information, explanation and representation provided to us and based on verification
carried out by us, during the year, the Company has not made any investments in or has not provided
any guarantee or security or has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or
unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, clause
3 (iti) (a) o (f) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information, explanation and representation provided to us and based on verification
cartied out by us, the Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the loans and investments made, and guarantees and security
provided by it, as applicable.

According to the information, explanation and representation provided to us and based on verification
carried out by us, the Company has not accepted deposits or deemed deposits to which the directives
issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the rules
framed there under, are applicable. Accordingly, reporting under para 3(v) is not applicable.




(vi)

(vii)

(vii)

(1)

We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company in respect of products
where maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under sub-section 1
of section 148 of the Act and the rules framed there under and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the
prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained. However, we have not made a
detailed examination of the cost records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or
complete.

(1) Undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax, provident fund, employees’ state
Insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, goods and
services tax, cess and other material statutory dues, as applicable, have generally been regularly
deposited to the appropriate authorities. Further, no undisputed amounts payable in respect thereof
were outstanding at the year-end for a period of more than six months from the date they became
payable.

(b) According to the information, explanation and representation provided to us and based on
verification carried out by us, there are dues of Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs,
Duty of Excise, Value added tax, Cess on account of any dispute, are as follows:

Name of the| Nawre of| Amount Amount Period  to Forum  where
Statute the Dues (in 2 paid which  the dispute s
Lakhs) under amount pending
Protest relates
(X in Lakhs)
Income Tax Income Tax | 97.52 Nil AY 2015-16 CIT (Appeals)
Act, 1961
GST Tax 52.96 Nil FY 2019-20 Central
The Central Appellate
Goods and Authoriey
Services Tax Act,
2017

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined
by us, there are no transactions in the books of account that has been surrendered of disclosed as
income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961(43 of 1961), that has
not been recorded in the books of account.

(a) According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanations
given to us, the Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or borrowings and interest
thereon payable to any banks and other lenders. The Company does not have any borrowings from
financial institutions or government.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit procedures,
the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or government authority.

(¢) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit procedures,
the Company has not obtained any term loans. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not
applicable.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by us,
and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the company, we report that no funds
raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the company.




)

()

(xii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

(¢) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by us, the
Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations
of its subsidiaries as defined under the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is
not applicable.

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by us, the
Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries as
defined under the Companies Act, 2013, Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable.

(@) According to the information, explanation and representation provided to us and based on
verification carried out by us, the Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or
further public offer (including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the
Order is not applicable.

(b)  According to the information, explanation and representation provided to us and based on
verification carried out by us, during the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or
private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the vear. Accordingly, clause

3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(a) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information and
explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of material fraud by the Company
or on the Company, noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been informed of any such case
by the Management.

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Compinies Act has been filed in Form
ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central
Government, duting the year and up to the date of this report.

() According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by us,
there are no whistle-blower complaints received by the Company during the vear.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by us, the
Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 with respect to
applicable all transactions with the related parties and the details of related party transactions have been
disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(a) In our opinion and based on our examination, the company does not have an internal audit system
and is not required to have an Internal audit system as per the provisions of the Companies Act 2013,

(b) The company did not have an internal system for the period under audit. Accordingly, clause 3(xav)
of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information, explanation and representation provided to us and based on verification
carried out by us, during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its
Directors or persons connected with its directors. and hence provisions of section 192 of the
Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

(8) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable




(xvii)

(xviil)

(xx)

(b) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the
Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

(d) According to the information and explanations provided to us during the course of audit, the
Group does not have any CIC. Accordingly, the requirements of clause 3(xvi){d) are not applicable.

The Company has incurred cash losses of ¥ 660.44 lakhs in the current financial vear 2024-25 and cash
losses of % 6,349.68 lakhs during immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year. Accordingly,
clause 3(xvii) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratos,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilitics, other
information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions
and subject to the Note no. 48 of the financial statements, nothing has come to our attention, which
causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they
fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an
assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the
facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantec nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the
Company as and when they fall due.

(a) Since there are no other than ongoing projects, accordingly, reporting under clause 3 (xx) (a) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) In respect of ongoing project, the Company has spent amount of ¥ 19.48 lakhs out of Z 31 82
lakhs towards Corporate Social Responsibility during the FY 2024-25. The matter has been disclosed in
Note No 27 (ii) to the financial statements.

For Agarwal Prakash & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 005975N

Praveen Keshav
Partner
Membership No. 535106

UDIN: 25535106BMKQCG8693

Place: Delhi
Date: 21 May 2025



Annexure B to the Independent Auditor's Report

With reference to the Annexure B referred to in the Independent Auditor's Report to the members of
the Company on the financial statements for the year ended 31 march 2025 of even date.

Independent Auditor’s report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section
3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Athena
Infrastructure Limited (‘the Company’) as of 31 March 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control with reference to financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAI"). These responsibiliies include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively
for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of the Company’s business, including adherence to
Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the tumely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section
143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to
an audit of Internal Financial Controls and both, issued by ICAIL Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial control system with reference to financial statements and their operaung effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that
a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.




Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

A Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed 1o
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounung principles.
A Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
Company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material ¢ffect
on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Cotnpany has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were operating effectively as at 31 march 2025, based on the internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by ICAL

For Agarwal Prakash & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 005975N

005975N
New Delhi

Praveen Keshav
Partner
Membership No. 535106

UDIN: 25535106BMKQCG8693

Place: Delhi
Date: 21 May 2025



Athena Infrastructure Limited
Balance sheet as at 31 March 2025

I

I

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Financial assets

Other financial assets
Deferred tax assets (net)
Non-cutrent tax assets (net)

Current assets
Inventories
Financial assets
Trade receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Other bank balances
Other financial assets
Other current assets

Total of Assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity

Equity share capital

Instruments entirely equity in nature
Other equity

Liabilities
Non-current liabilities

Provisions

Current liabilities
Financial Labilities
Borrowings
Trade payables
- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises
Other financial liabilities
Other current liabilities
Provisions

Total of Equity and Liabilities
Summary of material accounting policies

The accompanying notes are integral part of the financial statements

This is the balance sheet referred to in our report of even date.

For Agarwal Prakash & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration Number: 005975N

Praveen Keshav
Partner
Membership No: 535106

Place: Delhi
Date: 21 May 2025

Note

GA

11
12

6B
13

14A
14B
15

16A

17

18A

18B
19
20

16B

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
® in lakhs) ® in lakhs)
5.99 735
321.07 71.91
16.57 16.57
74.22 84.67
417.85 180.50
2,718.03 8,464.48
17.03 1,268.53
26.17 1.68
933.36 863.87
1,963.22 237.81
114.82 103.91
5,772.63 10,940.28
6,190.48 11,120.78
9.80 9.80
9,560.99 9,560.99
(31,813.38) (31,152.33)
(22,242.59) (21,581.54)
117.97 126.32
117.97 126.32
17,407.52 14,047.47
56.67 85.45
1,537.89 2,421.66
1,943.46 1,180.41
3,650.62 10,179.99
3,718.94 4,661.02
28,315.10 32,576.00
6,190.48 11,120.78

For and on behalf of board of directors

Manish Riyal
Director
[DIN: 08226172]

Shankar Upadhyay

Chief Financial Officer

b=l

Shambu Singh
Whole Time Director
[DIN: 08986375]

Yo

Kanchan
Company Secretary



Athena Infrastructure Limited

Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2025

Revenue
Revenue from operations
Other income

Expenses

Cost of tevenue
Cost incurred during the year
Decrease in real estate properties
Operating Expenses

Employee benefits expense

Finance costs

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Other expenses

Loss before tax

Tax expenses
Current tax (including earlier years)
Defetred tax charge

Total of tax expense

Loss after tax

Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Re-measurement of defined benefit plans (net of tax)

Income tax effect
Total comprehensive income for the year

Earnings per equity share
Basic })
Diluted )

Summary of material accounting policies

The accompanying notes are integral part of the financial statements

This is the statement of profit and loss referred to in our report of even date.

For Agarwal Prakash & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration Number: 005975N

Praveen Keshav
Partner
Membership No: 535106

005975N
New Dethi

Place: Delhi
Date: 21 May 2025

Note 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
 in lakhs)  in lakhs)
21 6,759.54 2,928.99
22 110.43 90.94
6,869.97 3,019.93
23
- 250.28
5,746.45 1,967.87
1,044.53 929.33
24 550.69 507.11
25 5.35 1.7
26 6.82 7.07
27 184.13 5,653.35
7,537.97 9,316.72
(668.00) (6,296.79)
28
- 43.64
(1.75) 9.19
(1.75) 52.83
(666.25) (6,349.62)
6.95 (17.95)
(1.75) 4.52
(661.05) (6,363.05)
29
(63.20) (602.35)
(63.20) (602.35)
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Athena Infrastructure Limited

All amount in * lakhs, unless otherwise stated

Statement of Cash Flows for the Year ended 31 March
2025 2024
A. Cash flow from operating activities:
Loss before income tax for the year (668.00) (6,296.79)
Adjustments for:
Property, plant and equipment written off 0.83 2.81
Provision written back 28.24 671
Depreciation and amortisation expense 6.82 7.07
Balances written back 0.09 (19.13)
Intetest income on income tax refund (1.63) 6.52)
Profit on redemption of mutual funds (1.24) -
Interest on optionally convertible debentures 0.01 0.01
Interest income on fixed deposit (79.24) (58.58)
Provision for gratuity and compensated absences 3047 21.59
Operating loss before working capital changes and other adjustments (683.83) (6,342.83)
Working capital changes and other adjustments:
Inventories 5,746.45 1,967.87
Trade receivables 1,251,530 (266.74)
Current and non-current financial assets - (117.44)
Other current and other non-current assets (1,740.82) 288.46
Trade payables 912.56) (525.94)
Other financial abilities 763.14 (414.47)
Other current liabilities (6,557.55) (371.63)
Current and non-current provisions 973.95 3,585.72
Cash (used in) / generated from operating activities (3,107.62) (2,197.00)
Income taxes paid (net) 12.08 35.93
Net cash (used in) / generated from operating activities (3,095.54) (2,161.07)
B. Cash flow from investing activities:
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets (6.33) (1.26)
Proceeds from Sale of Mutual funds, net 1.24 -
Loans given & received back, net 4.49 -
Movement in Fixed Deposits, net (314.43) 405.00
Interest received on fixed deposit 75.02 68.06
Net cash (used in) / generated from investing activities (240.01) 471.80
C. Cash flow from financing activities: {refer note<17}
Interest paid on debentures 0.01) .01
Repayment of inter-corporate borrowings (2,346.70) 2,537.00)
Proceeds from inter-corporate borrowings 5,706.75 4,208.00
Net cash generated from/ (used in) financing activities 3,360.04 1,670.99
D. (Decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents, net (A+B+C) 24.49 (18.28)
E. Cashand cash equivalents at the begmning of the year 1.68 19.96
F. Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (D+E) 26.17 1.68
G. Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as per cash flow statement
Cash and cash equivalents includes: (refer note-11)
Cash on hand - .
Balances with scheduled banks
- In current accounts 26.17 1.68
26.17 1.68

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

This is the statement of cash flow referred to in our report of even date

For Agarwal Prakash & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration Numbee: 005975N

Praveen Keshav
Partner
Membership No: 535106

Place: Delhi
Date: 21 May 202
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Athena Infrastructure Limited
Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2025

A Equity share capital®* ® in lakhs)

Particulars Balance as at Balance as at

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Equity share capital 9.80 9.80
Instruments entirely equity in nature®* (Z in lakhs)
Particulars Balance as at Balance as at

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Compulsory convertible preference shares 5,140.99 3,140.99
Optonally convertible debentures 6,420.00 6,420.00
Total 9,560.99 9,560.99
Other equity” Z in lakhs)

Reserves and surplus
Other
Description components of
equity General reserve | Retained earnings Total
Balance as at 01 April 2023 131.58 - (24,920.86) (24,789.28)
Loss for the year - - (6,349.62) (6,349.62)
Other comprehensive income
Re-measurement of defined benefit plans (net of tax) - - (13.43) (13.43)
Transfer to general reserve (131.58) 131.58 - -
Balance as at 31 March 2024 - 131.58 (31,283.91) (31,152.33)
Loss for the year - - (666.25) (666.25)
Other comprehensive income
Re-measurement of defined benefit plans (net of tax) - - 5.20 5.20

Transfer to general reserve - - - -
Balance as at 31 March 2025 - 131.58 (31,944.96) (31,813.38)

*Refer note 14A for details
**Refer note 14B for details
“Refer note 15 for details

This is the statement of changes in equity referred to in our report of even date.

For Agarwal Prakash & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration Number: 005975N

For and on behalf of board of directors

A

Mam'sRiya/l’ Shambu Singh

Director Whole Time Director
[DIN: 08226172] [DIN: 08986375]

o

Kanchan

Praveen Keshav
Partner
Membership No: 535106

Place: Delhi
Date: 21 May 2025

Shankar Upadhyay

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary



Athena Infrastructure Limited

Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31
March 2025

Nature of principal activities

Athena Infrastructure Limited (“the Company”) having CIN: U70109DL2006PL.C151538 was incorporated on 2
August 2006. The Company is engaged in development of real estate properties and all other related activities.
The Company is domiciled in India and its registered office is situated at Office no 202, 2nd Floor, A-18, Rama
House, Middle Citcle, Connaught Place, New Delhi-110001.

General information and statement of compliance with Ind AS

These financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting
Standards as notified under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 (‘the Act’) - read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 (by Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA”)), as amended and other relevant
provisions of the Act. The Company has uniformly applied the accounting policies during the petiods presented.

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (‘INR’ or <) which is the functional currency of the
Company and all values are rounded to the nearest lakhs, except where otherwise indicated.

Entity specific disclosure of material accounting policies where Ind AS permits options is disclosed hereunder.

The Company has assessed the materiality of the accounting policy information which involves exercising
judgements and considering both qualitative and quantitative factors by taking into account not only the size and
nature of the item or condition but also the characteristics of the transactions, events ot conditions that could
make the information more likely to impact the decisions of the users of the financial statements.

Entity’s conclusion that an accounting policy is immaterial does not affect the disclosures requirements set out in
the accounting standards. ‘

Accounting Policies have been consistently applied except whete a newly-issued Accounting Standard is initially
adopted ot a revision to an existing Accounting Standard requires a change in the Accounting Policy hitherto
adopted.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 wete authotized and approved for issue by the Board
of Directors on 21 May 2025. The revisions to the financial statements is permitted by the Board of Directors
after obtaining necessary approvals or at the instance of regulatory authorities as per provisions of the Act.

Recent accounting pronouncement

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. During the year ended 31 March
2025, MCA notified new accounting standard Ind AS 117- Insurance Contracts, which has no impact on the
company financial statements. Further the MCA has made certain amendments to Ind AS 116- Leases, in
particularly related to sale and lease back transactions, which has an applicability from 1 April 2024, and has no
significant impact on financial statements.

On 07 May 2025, MCA notifies the amendments to Ind AS 21 - Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates.
These amendments aim to provide cleater guidance on assessing currency exchangeability and estimating
exchange rates when currencies are not readily exchangeable. The amendments are effective for annual petiods
beginning on or after 01 April 2025. The Company is currently assessing the probable impact of these
amendments on its financial statements.

Basis of accounting

The financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in India. Further, the financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except
for certain financial assets and financial liabilities and share based payments which are measured at fair value.

Summary of material accounting policies
The financial statements have been prepared using the material accounting policies and measurement bases

summatised below. These were used througho -;, ods presented in the financial statements.
\" Ag
&Q"




Athena Infrastructute Limited
Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31
March 2025

4.1 Current versus non-current classification
For the purpose of Current / Non-Current classification, the Company has reckoned its normal operating
cycle as twelve months based on the nature of products and the time between the acquisition of assets or
inventories for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents.

4.2 Property, plant and equipment (PPE)

Recognition and initial measurement

Propetty, plant and equipment are stated at their cost of acquisition. The cost comprises purchase price,
borrowing cost if capitalization criteria ate met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working
condition for the intended use. Any trade discount and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or trecognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company. All
other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in statement of profit and loss as incurred.

Subsequent measurement (depreciation and useful lives)
Depreciation on propetty, plant and equipment is provided on the straight-line method, computed on the basis
of useful lives (as set out below) prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013.

Asset class Useful life
Building — temporary structure 1 year
Plant and machinery 12 years
Office equipment 5 years
Computers 3 yeats
Furniture and fixtures 10 years

The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation of are reviewed at the end of each financial year.
De-recognition

An item of property, plant and equipment initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
recognised in statement of profit and loss when the asset is de-recognised.

4.3 Financial instruments

Financial assets

Recognition and tnitial measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value and transaction cost that is attributable to the acquisition
of the financial asset is also adjusted.

Subsequent measurement

Debt instruments at amortised cost — A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the
following conditions are met:

o The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash
flows; and

e Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and intetest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate (EIR) method.




Athena Infrastructure Limited

Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31
March 2025

De-recognition of financial assets

A financial asset is primarily de-recognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired or
the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset.

Financial Liabilities

Recognition and initial measurement
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and transaction cost that is attributable to the
acquisition of the financial liabilities is also adjusted.

Subsequent measurement — Amortised cost
Subsequent to initial recognition, financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

Initial and subsequent recognition and measurement — fair value

A financial liability is classified as fair value through profit and loss (FVIPL) if it is designated as such upon
initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVIPL ate measured at fair value and net gain/losses, including any
interest expense are recognised in statement of profit and loss.

De-recognition of financial hiabilities

A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the
de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective
cartying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is 2
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

4.4 Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and
recognition of impairment loss for financial assets. The Company factors historical trends and forward looking
information to assess expected credit losses associated with its assets and impairment methodology applied
depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

Trade receivables

In respect of trade receivables, the Company applies the simplified approach of Ind AS 109, which requires
measurement of loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses. Lifetime expected credit
losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument.

Other financial assets

In respect of its other financial assets, the Company assesses if the credit risk on those financial assets has
increased significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk has not increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Company measutes the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses,
else at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses. The Company assumes that the credit risk on a
financial asset has not increased significantly since initial recognition, if the financial asset is determined to have
low credit risk at the balance sheet date.




Athena Infrastructure Limited
Summaty of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31
March 2025

4.5 Impairment of non-financial assets

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired,
based on internal or external factors. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset or the
cash generating unit is estimated. If such recoverable amount of the asset or cash generating unit to which the
asset belongs is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The
reduction is treated as an impairment loss and is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. If, at the
reporting date there is an indication that a previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable
amount is reassessed and the asset is reflected at the recoverable amount. Impairment losses previously
recognised are accordingly reversed in the statement of profit and loss.

4.6 Inventories

Land other than that transferred to real estate properties under development is valued at lower of cost or net
realizable value.

Real estate properties (developed and under development) includes cost of land under development, internal and
external development costs, construction costs, and development/construction materials, borrowing costs and
related overhead costs and is valued at lower of cost or net realizable value.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated costs of
completion and estimated costs of necessary to make the sale.

4.7 Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when control is transferred and is accounted net of rebate and taxes. The Company
applies the revenue recognition critetia to each nature of the revenue transaction as set out below.

Revenue from sale of properties

Revenue from sale of properties is recognized when the performance obligations are essentially complete and
credit risks have been significantly eliminated. The performance obligations are considered to be complete when
control over the property has been transferred to the buyer i.e. offer for possession (possession request letter) of
properties have been issued to the customers and substantial sales consideration is received from the customers.

The Company considers the terms of the contract and its customary business practices to determine the
transaction price. The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the Company expects to be
entitled in exchange for transferring property to a customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third
parties (for example, indirect taxes). The consideration promised in a contract with a customer may include fixed
consideration, variable consideration (if reversal is less likely in future), or both.

For each performance obligation identified, the Company detetmines at contract inception whether it satisfies
the petformance obligation over time or satisfies the performance obligation at a point in time. If an entity does
not satisfy a performance obligation over time, the performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time. A
receivable is recognised by the Company when the control is transferred as this is the case of point in time
recognition where consideration is unconditional because only the passage of time is required.

When either party to a contract has performed, an entity shall present the contract in the balance sheet as a
contract asset or a contract liability, depending on the relationship between the entity’s petformance and the
customer’s payment.

The costs estimates are reviewed periodically and effect of any change in such estimate is recognized in the
period such changes are determined. However, when the total estimated cost exceeds total expected revenues
from the contracts, the loss is recognized immediately.




Athena Infrastructure Limited
Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31
March 2025

Interest income
Interest income is recorded on accrual basis using the effective interest rate (EIR) method.

Interest on delayed receipts, cancellation income and transfer fees from customers are recognized on accrual
basis except in cases where ultimate collection is considered doubtful.

4.8 Employee benefits

Defined contribution plan

The Company’s conttibution to provident fund is charged to the statement of profit and loss or inventorized as a
part of real estate project under development, as the case may be. The Company’s contributions towards
provident fund are deposited with the regional provident fund commissioner under a defined contribution plan.

Defined benefit plan

The Company has unfunded gratuity as defined benefit plan where the amount that an employee will receive on
retirement is defined by reference to the employee’s length of service and final salary. The liability recognised in
the balance sheet for defined benefit plans as the present value of the defined benefit obligation (DBO) at the
reporting date. Management estimates the DBO annually with the assistance of independent actuaries. Actuarial
gains/losses resulting from re-measurements of the liability are included in other comprehensive income.

Other long-term employee benefits

The Company also provides benefit of compensated absences to its employees which are in the nature of long -
term employee benefit plan. Liability in respect of compensated absences becoming due and expected to be
availed more than one year after the balance sheet date is estimated on the basis of an actuarial valuation
petformed by an independent actuary using the projected unit credit method as on the reporting date. Actuarial
gains and losses arising from expetience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recorded in the
statement of profit and loss in the year in which such gains or losses arise.

Short-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits comptise of employee costs such as salaries, bonus etc. is recognised on the basis
of the amount paid or payable for the petiod duting which services ate rendered by the employee.

4.9 Share based payments

Share based compensation benefits are provided to employees via Embassy Developments Limited (Formerly
Equinox India Developments Limited and eatlier Indiabulls Real Estate Limited) (‘Holding Company’)
Employee Stock Option Plans (ESOPs). The employee benefits expense is measured using the fair value of the
employee stock options and is recognised over vesting period with a corresponding increase in equity. The
vesting period is the period over which all the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. On the exercise of
the employee stock options, the employees of the Company will be allotted Holding Company’s equity shares.

4.10 Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognised only when there is a present obligation, as a result of past events, and when a reliable
estimate of the amount of obligation can be made at the reporting date. These estimates are reviewed at each
reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. Provisions are discounted to their present
values, where the time value of money is material.

Contingent liability is disclosed for:

e DPossible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the control of the
Company or

e Present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made.

Contingent assets are neither recognised nor dis¢leh
related asset is recognised.

8%, when realization of income is virtually certain,



Athena Infrastructure Limited

Summaty of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31
March 2025

4.11 Significant management judgement in applying accounting policies and estimation uncertainty

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of tevenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the related
disclosures.

Significant management judgements

Recognition of deferred tax assets — The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognized is based on an
assessment of the probability of the Company’s future taxable income against which the deferred tax assets can
be utilized.

Evaluation of indicators for impairment of assets — The evaluation of applicability of indicators of
impairment of assets tequires assessment of several external and internal factors which could result in
deterioration of recoverable amount. of the assets.

Recoverability of advances/receivables — At each balance sheet date, based on historical default rates
observed over expected life, the management assesses the expected credit losses on outstanding receivables and
advances.

Provisions — At each balance sheet date basis the management judgment, changes in facts and legal aspects, the
Company assesses the requitement of provisions against the outstanding contingent liabilities. However, the
actual future outcome may be different from this judgement.

Significant estimates

Revenue and inventories — The estimates around total budgeted cost i.e. outcomes of undetlying construction
and service contracts, which further require assessments and judgements to be made on changes in work scopes,
claims and other payments to the extent they are probable and they are capable of being reliably measured. For
the purpose of making estimates for claims, the Company used the available contractual and historical
information. The estimates of the saleable area are also reviewed periodically and effect of any changes in such
estimates is recognised in the period such changes are determined.

Useful lives of depreciable/amortisable assets — Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of
depreciable/amortisable assets at each reporting date, based on the expected utility of the assets. Uncertainties in
these estimates relate to technical and economic obsolescence that may change the utilisation of assets.

Defined benefit obligation (DBO) — Management’s estimate of the DBO is based on a numbet of underlying
assumptions such as standard rates of inflation, mortality, discount rate and anticipation of future salary
increases. Variation in these assumptions may significantly impact the DBO amount and the annual defined
benefit expenses.

Fair value measurements — Management applies valuation techniques to determine the fair value of financial
instruments (where active market quotes are not available) and non-financial assets. This involves developing
estimates and assumptions consistent with how market participants would price the instrument. Management
uses the best information available. Estimated fair values may vaty from the actual prices that would be achieved
in an arm’s length transaction at the reporting date.

(This space has been intentionally left blank )



Athena Infrastructure Limited
Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2025

5 Property, plant and equipment ( ¥ in lakhs)
Particulars Plant and Office equipment Computers  Furniture and Vehicles Total
equipment fixtures

Gross carrying amount

As at 01 April 2023 12.78 0.50 28.56 1.05 12.34 55.23
Additions - - 1.26 - - 1.26
Adjustments for disposals 12.78 0.50 13.83 1.05 6.30 34.46
Balance as at 31 March 2024 - - 15.99 - 6.04 22.03
Additions - - 6.33 - - 6.33
Adjustments for disposals - - 3.76 - 6.04 9.80
Balance as at 31 March 2025 - - 18.56 - - 18.56

Accumulated depreciation

As at 01 April 2023 12.78 0.49 18.33 0.98 6.68 39.26
Charge for the year - 0.01 5.49 0.04 1.53 707
Adjustments for disposals 12.78 0.50 13.83 1.02 3.52 31.65
Balance as at 31 March 2024 - - 9.99 - 4.69 14.68
Charge for the year - - 6.25 - 0.57 6.82
Adjustments for disposals - - 3.67 - 5.26 8.93
Balance as at 31 March 2025 - - 12,57 - - 12.57
Net carrying value as at 31 March 2024 - - 6.00 - 1.35 7.35
Net carrying value as at 31 March 2025 - - 5.99 - - 5.99
(a) Property, plant and equipment pledged as security

Property, plant and equipment have not been pledged as security for borrowings.

(b) Capitalised borrowing cost
No borrowing cost has been capitalised on property, plant and equipment.




Athena Infrastructure Limited

S y of ial g policies and other for the year ended 31 March 2025
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
( in lakhs) (X in lakhs)
Note - 6
A Other financial assets - non-current
Bank deposits with maturity of more than 12 months* 321.07 71.91
32107 7191
“Bank deposits (exclusive on interest accrued) with banks of 2 321.07 lakhs (31 March 2024: % 71.91 lakhs) are pledged against bank guarantecs given to Governor of Huryana and Dakshin Haryana Bijli
Vitran Nigam, Director Town and Country Planning, Chandigarh and CEO Gurgaon Metropolitan Development Authority.
B Other financial assets - current
(Secured - considered good)
Loans to employees 8.94 13.43
8.94 13.43
{Unsecured - considered good)
Secunity deposits 1,954.28 224.38
1,954.28 224.38
1,963.22 237.81
Note -7
Deferred tax assets {net)
Deferred tax asset/ (liablity)
Employee benefits 1854 29.19
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets- depreciation and amortisation (197 (12.62)
16.57 16.57
() The unabsorbed business losses amounting to Z 26,854.99 lakhs (31 March 2024: T 29,888.35 lakhs}) on which no deferred tax is recognised considering there is no probability which demonstrate realisation of
deferred tax asset in the near future. Further these losses are available for offset for maximum period of ¢ight years from the incurrence of losses,
(if) Caption wise movement in deferred tax assets as follows:
Particulars 31 March 2024 Recognised in other Recognised in 31 March 2025
comprehensive i of profit
and loss
Assets / (liabilities)
Employee benefits 29.19 (1.75) (8.90) 18.54
Property. plant and equipment and intangible assets (12.62) - 10.63 (197
Total 16.57 (1.75) 175 16.57
Particulars 01 April 2023 Recognised in other Recognised in 31 March 2024
prel ive i of profit;
and loss
Assets / (liabilities)
Employee benefits 27.14 4.52 (247) 29.19
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (5.90) - (6.72) (12.62)
Total 21.24 4.52 (9.19) 16.57
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Note - 8 ® in lakhs) ® i lakhs)
Non-current tax assets (net)
Advance income ta, including tax deducted at source 74.22 84.67
74.22 84.67
Note -9 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Inventories (R in lakhs) (X in lakhs)
A Real estate properties under develop {at cost)
Cost of properties under development 78,666.95 78,715.59
Less: Transferred to developed properties (78,666.95) (78,715.59)
B Real estate properties - developed (at cost)
Cost of developed properties 78,666.95 78,715.59
Less: Cost of revenue recognized till date (75,950.57) {70,254,44)
2,716.38 8,461.15
C Construction materials in stock (at cost) 1.65 3.33
2,718.03 8,464.48
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Athena Infrastructure Limited

y of i g policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2025

Note - 10
‘Trade receivables
Unsecured
Considered good
Related party
Others
Trade Receivables- credit impaired

Less: Impairment for trade receivables (expected credit loss)

As at 31 March 2025

17.03
115.79

426.62
841.91

132.82
(115.79)

1,268.53

17.03

1,268.53

Particulars

Less than 6
months

6 months to 1 year

1year to 2 year

2 year to 3 year

More than 3 years

Loss allowance

Total

(i) Undisputed trade receivables - considered
good

17.03

17.03

(it) Undisputed trade receivables -
considered doubtful (Having significant
increase in risk)

(iti) Undisputed trade receivables - credit
impaired

(iv) Disputed trade receivables - considered
good

(v) Disputed trade receivables - considered
doubtful (Having significant increase in risk)

(115.79)

{vi) Disputed trade receivables - credit
impaired

As at 31 March 2024

Particulars

Less than 6
months

6 months to 1 year

1year to 2 year

2 year to 3 year

More than 3 years

Loss allowance

Total

(i} Undisputed trade receivables - considered
good

426.62

181.93

190.90

364.92

104.16

1,268.53

(i) Undisputed trade receivables -
considered doubtful (Having significant
increase in risk)

(i) Undisputed trade receivables - credit
impaired

(iv) Disputed trade receivables - considered
good

(v) Disputed trade receivables - considered
doubtful (Having significant increase in risk)

(vi) Disputed trade receivables - credit
impaired

Note - 11

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash in hand

Balances with banks - in current account

Note - 12
Other bank balances

Bank deposits - with maturity of more than three months-and upto twelve months*

26.17

1.68

26.17

1.68

933.36

863.87

933.36

863.87

*Bank deposits (exclusive on interest accrued) with banks of X 921.72 lakhs (31 March 2024: X 856.45 lakhs) are pledged against bank guarantees given to Governor of Haryana and Dakshin Haryana Bijli
Vitran Nigam, Director Town and Country Planning, Chandigarh and CEO Gurgaon Metropolitan Development Authortity.

Note - 13

Other current assets

Advance to employees

Mobilization advances

Advance to suppliers/service providers
Prepaid expenses

(This space bar been intentionally lefe blank).

0.25 0.20
9.04 3.21
96.65 90.10
8.88 10.40
114.82 103.91
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Note - 14

Equity share capital 31 March 2025 31 March 2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2024

Authorised Number (X in lakhs) Number (X in lakhs)

Equity share capital of face value of ¥ 10-each 1,000,000 100.00 1,000,000 100.00
100.00 100.00

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up

Equity share capital of face value of ¥ 10 each fully paid up 98,039 9.80 98,039 9.80

9.80 9.80

Reconciliation of number of equity shares ding at the beginning and at the end of the year

Equity shares

Balance at the beginning of the year 98,039 9.80 98,039 9.80

Add: Issued during the year - - N -

Less: Redeemed during the year - - . -

Balance at the end of the year 98,039 9.80 98,039 9.80

Rights, prefe and icti hed to equity shares

The holders of equity shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time, and are entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the Company. In the event of liquidation of the Company,
the remaining assets of the Company shall be distributed to the holders of equity shares in proportion to the number of shares held to the total equity shares outstanding as on that date. All shares rank
equally with regard to the Company’s residual assets.

98,039 (31 March 2024: 98,039 equity shares) equity shares of the Company is held by holding company namely Embassy Developments Limited (Formerly Equinox India Developments Limited and eaclier
Indiabulls Real Estate Limited) and its nominees.

Details of shareholder holding more than 5% share capital

Name of the shareholder shares Number of shares
Embassy Developments Limited (Formerly Equinox India Developments Limited and earlier Indiabulls Real Estate Limited) (equity shares)* 98,039 98,039
* including nominee shares

Disclosure of Sharcholding of P
Disclosure of shareholding of promoters as at 31 March 2025 is as follows :
Promoter Name ____ Share Held by Promoters
As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Number of shares % Total of Shares Number of shares | % Total of Shates| % Change during
the year
Embassy Developments Limited (Formerly Equinox India Developments Limited and 98,039 100.00% 98,039 100.00% -
catlier Indiabulls Real Estate Limited) (including nominee shares)
Disclosure of shareholding of promoters as at 31 March 2024 is as follows :
Promoter Name Share Held by Promoters
As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Number of shares % Total of Shares Number of shares | % Total of Shares| % Change during
the year
Embassy Developments Limited (Formerly Equinox India Developments Limited and 98,039 100.00% 98,039 100.00% -
eaclier Indiabulls Real Estate Limited) (including nominee shares)

The Company does not have any shares issued for consideration other than cash during the immediately preceding five years. The Company did not buy back any shares during immediately preceding five
years.

Instruments entirely equity in nature

Compulsory convertible prefe shares ('CCPS")
31 March 2025 31 March 2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2024
Authorised Number ( in lakhs) Number (R in lakhs)
Compulsorily convertible preference shares of face value of ¥ 1,000 each 320,000 3,200.00 320,000 3,200.00
320,000 3,200.00 320,000 3,200.00
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up
0.0001% Compulsorily convertible preference shares of face value of 1,000 each fully paid up 314,099 3,140.99 314,099 3,140.99
314,099 3,140.99 314,099 3,140.99
Reconciliation of ber of Compulsorily convertible prefe shares ding at the beginning and at the end of the year
Compulsorily convertible pref shares

Balance at the beginning of the year 314,099 3,140.99 314,099 3,140.99
Add: Issued during the year - . - .

Less: Redeemed during the year - - - .
Balance at the end of the year 314,099 3,140,99 314,099 3,140.99
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Discl of Shareh of P
Disclosure of shareholding of promoters as at 31 March 2025 is as follows :

and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2025

1d;

Promoter Name Share Held by Promoters
As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Number of shares % Total of Shares Number of shares | % Total of Shares| % Change during
the year
Embassy Developments Limited (Formerly Equinox India Developments Limited and 314,099 100.00% 314,099 100.00% -
eachier Indiabulls Real Estate Limited)
Disclosure of shareholding of promoters as at 31 March 2024 is as follows :
Promoter Name Share Held by Promoters
As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Number of shares % Total of Shares Number of shares | % Total of Shares| % Change during
the year
Embassy Developments Limited (Formerly Equinox India Developments Limited and 314,099 100.00% 314,099 100.00% -
earlier Indiabulls Real Estate Limited)

Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to preference shares

0.0001% Compulscrily convertible preference shares of face value of € 1,000 each fully paid up. These CCPS are held by holding company namely Embassy Developments Limited

(Formerly Equinox India Developments Limited and earlier Indiabulls Real Estate Limited) and its nominees. These CCPS are convertible into number of equity shates determined by dividing aggregate
principal amount of preference share capital by a conversion price of ¥ 1,000. The holders of preference shares are entitled to receive dividends at the rate of 0.0001%, but do nat carty right to vote. All
shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s residual assets, except that holders of preference shares participate only to the extent of the face value of the shares.

CCPS are held by the Holding Company namely Embassy Developments Limited(Formerly Equinox India Developments Limited and earlier Indiabulls Real Estate Limited) .

Details of shareholder holding more than 5%
Name of the preference shareholder

Embassy Developments Limited (Formerly Equinox India Developments Limited and eaclier Indiabulls Real Estate Limited)

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

Number of shares Number of shares

314,099

314,009

The Company does not have any preference shares issued for consideration other than cash during the immediately preceding five years. The Company did not buy back any preference shares during
immediately preceding five years.

Optionally convertible deb ('oCDY) 31 March 2025 31 March 2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2024
Number (% in lakhs) Number (X in lakhs)

Issued and fully paid up

0.0001% Optionally convertible debentutes of face value of ¥ 1,000 each fully paid up 642,000 6,420.00 642,000 6,420.00
642,000 6,420.00 642,000 6,420.00

i Reconciliation of number of optionally convertible debentures ding at the t andat the end of the year

Optionally convertible debentures

Balance at the beginning of the year 642,000 6,420.00 642,000 6,420.00

Transferred to equity on account of modification of terms during the year (refer note iii below) - - - -

Balance at the end of the year 642,000 6,420.00 642,000 6,420.00

Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to optionally convertible debentures (QCDs)

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Company had issued 642,000 optionally convertible debentures (OCDs) of face value of % 1000 each, bearing interest rate of 0.0001% per annum. These
debentures were convertible into equity shares, at any time over the maturity period of 20 years . If holder does not exercise its right of conversion, the debentures will be redeemed at the end of the period
of 20 years, These optionally convertible debentures were redeemable at the option of the holder, at any time over the maturity petiod of 20 years.

As per the revised terms, agreed with the debenture holders and approved by the board of director in their meedting dated 7 February 2020, OCDs are convertible ot redeemable ar the option of issuer, on
or before the expiry of the term. OCDs are convertible in the ratio of one equity share for each debenture. OCDs are held by the Holding Company namely Embassy Developments Limited (Formerly
Equinox India Developments Limited and earlier Indiabulls Real Estate Limited) and its nominees. Accordingly, these OCDs have been classified as instruments entirely equity in nature.

OCDs are held by the Holding Company namely Embassy Developments Limited (Formerly Equinox India Developments Limited and earlier Indiabulls Real Estate Limited).

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Note - 15 (¥ in lakhs) (% in lakhs)
Other equity
Reserves and surplus
General reserve 131.58 131.58
Retained earnings (31.944.96) (31,283.91)
(31,813.38) (31,152.33)

Nature and purpose of other reserves

General Reserve
The company is required to create a general reserve out of its profits when the company declares dividend to shareholders.
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Summary of material ing policies and other expl y infe ion for the year ended 31 March 2025
Note - 16 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
A Provisions - non-current (¥ in lakhs) (¥ in lakhs)
Provision for employee benefits:
Gratuity (cefer note 45) 88.05 104.12
Compensated absences (refer note 45) 29.92 22.20
117,97 126.32
B Provisions - current
Provision for employee benefits:
Gratuity (refer note 45) 6.12 6.23
Compensated absences (refer note 45) 214 1.40
Provision for claims and compensation* 3.710.68 4,653.39
3,718.94 4,661.02
* Movement during the financial year;
As at beginning of the year 4,653.39 1,047.22
Additions during the year - 2;500.00
Paid/adjustment during the year (942.71) 1,106.17
As at end of reporting year 3,710.68 4,653.39
Note - 17
Borrowings - current
Unsecured loans
Inter-corporate botrowings from related parties (refer note 47)* 17,407.52 14,047.47
17,407.52 14,047.47
* Repayable on demand and are interest free.
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Note - 18 (¥ in lakhs) (¥ in lakhs)
Trade payables - current
A Toul outstanding dues of micro enterprises and srmall enterprises® 56.67 85.45
56.67 85.45
*Disclosure under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (“MSMED Act, 2006") as at 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
® in lakhs) @ in lakhs)
(i) the principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each accounting year; 56.67 85.45
(ii) Interest due thereon Nil Nil
(iify the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16, along with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day Nil Nil
during each accounting year;
(iv) the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but Nit Nil
without adding the interest specified under this Act;
(¥) the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year; and Nil Nil
(vi) the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to Nil Nil
the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance as 1 deductible expenditure under section 23,

The above information regarding Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the Company.

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
(% in lakhs) ® in lakhs)
B Totl outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 1,154.06 1,877.67
Retention Money 383.83 543.99
1,537.89 2,421.66
Trade Payables ageing as at 31 March 2025
Particulars Outstanding for the year ended 31 March 2025
Not Due Less than 1 year 1year to 2 year 2 year to 3 year More than 3 years Total
() MSME - 56.67 ~ - - 56.67
(if) Other than MSME 1.207.44 300.44 29.99 - 0.02 1,537.89
(i) Disputed dues - MSME - - - - - -
(iv) Disputed dues - Other than MSME - - - - - -
Trade Payables ageing as at 31 March 2024
Particulars Ourstanding for the year ended 31 March 2024
Not Due Less than 1 year 1 year to 2 year 2 year to 3 year More than 3 years ‘Total
(i) MSME - 85.45 - - - 85.45
(i) Other than MSME 2,165.81 25540 0.07 - 0.38 2,421.66
(iif) Disputed dues - MSME - - - - - -
(iv) Disputed dues - Other than MSME - - - - - -
Note - 19
Other financial liabilities - current
Advance refundable to customers 1,824.81 1,058.27
Expenses payable 118.63 122.14
1,943.46 1,180.41
Note - 20
Other current liabilities
Payable 10 statutory and government authorities 9.06 1193
Advance from customers 3,641.56 10,168.06
3,650.62 16,179.99
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Note - 21

Revenue from operations

Operating revenue

Revenue from real estate properties

Income from maintenance sétvices

Other operating income
Revenue from business management & support services
Interest from customers on overdue balances

Note - 22

Other income

Interest income

Balances written back

Profit on redemption of mutual funds
Provision written back

Note - 23

Cost of revenue

Cost incurted during the year

Decrease in inventory of real estate properties
Opening stock
Closing stock

Operating Expense

Note - 24
Employee benefits expense
Salaries and wages

Contribution to provident fund and other funds (refer note 45)

Staff welfare expenses

Note - 25

Finance costs

Interest on income tax

Interest on optionally convertible debenture
Other borrowing costs

Note - 26
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment*

* Refer note 5 for depreciation capitalized during the year.

Note - 27

Other expenses

Auditor's remuneration - as auditor (refer note (i) below)
Communication expenses

Corporate social responsibility expenses (refer note (i) below)
Business promotion and marketing expenses

Legal and professional charges '
Repairs and maintenance

Printing and stationery

Property, plant and equipment written off

Power and fuel expenses

Rates and taxes

Traveling and conveyance expenses

Claims and compensations

Miscellaneous expenses

(i) Details of payment to auditors
Audit fees

8,464.49
2,718.04)

31 March 2025
R in lakhs)

6,013.63
688.62

57.29
6,759.54

80.86
0.09
1.2¢

28.24

110.43

5,746.45
1,044.53
6,790.98

534.97
13.49
2.23
550.69

6.82
6.82

0.24
0.08

14.24
30.07
0.12
0.08
0.83
9.70
98,13
37
25.62
1.25
184.13

0.24
0.24

31 March 2024
® in lakhs)

2,001,50
490.70

367.78
69.01
2,928.99

65.10
19.13

6.71
90.94

250.28

10,432.35

8,464.48) 1,967.87

929.33

3,147.48

500.41
6.63
0.07

507.11

0.00
0.01
1.70
171

7.07
7.07

5,653.35

0.59
0.59

l
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(ii) Corporate social responsibility expenses

. For the year ended | For the year ended|
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Gross amount required to be spent by the company during the year N 31,82
Amount Contributed during the year - -
Short fall at the end of the year - 31.82
Reason for Shortfall NA NA
Nature of CSR activities NA unspent*
Detail of related party transactions NA NA

*The company had deposited this amount in a specified bank account, to be used for CSR project undertaken by an implementing agency. The period of the project
undertaken by the implementing agency was from 01 March 2024 tli 31 March 2026. The amount of Z 31.82 lakhs was transferred to the implementing agency during
financial year ended on 31 March 2025. At the end of the year the agency refunded unused amount of ¥ 12.34 lakhs. This amount will be demanded back by the

implimenting agency during remaining period of the project based on the requirements. This amount is currently deposited in a separate specified bank account.

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Note - 28 ® in lakhs) ® in lakhs)
Tax expenses
Current tax (including earlier years) - 43.64
Deferred tax expense g1.75) 9.19
Tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss (1.75) 52.83

The major components of the reconciliation of expected tax expense based on the domestic effective tax rate of the Company at 25.168% (31 March 2024: 25.168%) and
the reported tax expense in statement of profit and loss are as follows.

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India's tax rate
Accounting profit /(loss) before tax from continuing operations

(668.00) (6,296.79)

Accounting profit / (loss) before income tax (668.00) (6,296.79)
At statutory income tax rate of 25.168% (31 March 2024: 25.168%) (168.12) (1,584.78)
Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible in calculating taxable income:

Tax paid in respect of earlier years - 43.64

Tax impact of un recognition deferred tax on unabsorbed losses 160.95 1,578.82

Others 542 15.15

Tax expense (1.75) 52.83

Note- 29

Earnings per equity share

Earnings per share (EPS)) is determined based on the net profit attributable to the shateholders' of the Company. Basic earnings per share is computed using the weighted
average number of shares outstanding during the year including the number of equity shares that are issuable on the conversion of a mandatorily convertible instrument.
Diluted earnings per share is computed using the weighted average number of potential equity shares outstanding during the year including share options, except where the

result would be anti-dilutive.

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and dilured EPS computations:

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

(Z in lakhs) ® in lakhs)
Profit / (loss) for basic and diluted earnings per share X in lakhs) (666.25) (6,349.62)
Add: Interest on Compulsorily convertible preference shares 0.01 0.01
(666.24) (6,349.61)

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year 98,039 98,039
Add: Compulsorily convertible preference shares 314,099 314,099
Add: 0.0001% Optionally convertible debentures 642,000 642,000
Weighted average number of equity shares for basic and diluted EPS 1,054,138 1,054,138

Earnings per equity share

Basic %) (63.20) (602.35)
Diluted }) (63.20) (602.35)

(This space bas been intentionally left blank)
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Note - 30
Financial risk management

i) Financial instruments by category (Amount in ¥ lakhs)
. 31 March 2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Particulars FVTPL FVTIPL Amortised cost Amortised cost
Financial assets
Trade receivables - - 132.82 1,268.53
Cash and cash equivalents - - 26.17 1.68
Other bank balances - - 933.36 863.87
Other financial assets - B 2,284.29 309.72
‘Total financial assets - - 3,376.64 2,443.80
Financial liabilities
Borrowings - - 17,407.52 14,047.47
Trade payables - - 1,594.55 2,507.11
Other financial Liabilities - - 1,943.46 1,180.41
‘Total financial liabilities - - 20,945.53 17,734.99
if) Financial instruments measured at amortised cost (Amount in ¥ lakhs)
. 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Particulars - -~
Carrying value Fair value Carrying value Fair value
Financial assets
Other financial assets 321.07 321.07 71.91 71.91
Total financial assets 321.07 321.07 71.91 71.91

The above disclosures is presented for non-current financial assets. Carrying value of

other bank balances, loans and other financial assets) represents the best estimate of fair value.

iif) Risk management

(A) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that 2 counterparty fails to discharge its obligation to the Company.
equivalents, other bank balances, trade receivables, loans and financial assets measured 2

and other counterparties and incorporates this infortnation into its credit risk controls.

a) Credit risk management
i) Creditrisk rating

A: Low credit risk

B: Moderate credit risk
C: High credit risk

Assets under credit risk —

current financial assets (investments,

trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents,

The Company's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by cash and cash
t amortised cost. The Company continuously monitors defaults of customers

Credit rating |Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
A Cash and Cash Equivalents 26.17 1.68
A Other bank balances 933.36 863.87
A Other financial assets 2,284.29 309.72
A Trade receivables 17.03 1,268.53
C Trade receivables 115.79 -

The risk parameters are same for all financial assets for all period presented. The Com
whether there has been a significant increase in credit ri
considering the business environment in which entity operates a

i) Concentration of financial assets

The Company's principal business activities are development of real estate
estate properties. Other financial assets majorly represents secuity deposit given for business p

properties and all oth,

on-going basis throughout each re;
nd other macro-economic factors,

pany considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of asset and
porting period. In general, definition of default is determined by

er related activities. The Company's outstanding receivables are for real
urpose.
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b)

®)

©

Credit risk exposure

Provision for expected credit losses

The Company provides for 12 month or lifetime expected ctedit losses for following financial assets ~

As at 31 March 2025 (Amount in ¥ lakhs)
Particulars Gross Expected credit Carrying amount net of
carrying amount losses impairment
Trade receivables 132.82 115.79 17.03
Cash and cash equivalents 26.17 - 26.17
Other bank balances 933.36 - 933.36
Other financial assets 2,284.29 - 2,284.29
As at 31 March 2024 (Amount in ¥ lakhs)
Particulars Gross Expected credit Carrying amount net of
carrying amount losses impairment
Trade receivables 1,268.53 - 1,268.53
Cash and cash equivalents 1.68 - 1.68
Other bank balances 863.87 - 863.87
Other financial assets 309.72 - 309.72

Expected credit loss for trade receivables under simplified approach
In respect of trade receivables, the Company considers provision for lifetime expected credit loss. Given the nature of business operations, the Company’s trade
receivables have been identified for expected credit loss and the same have been recognised through statement of profit and loss.

Reconciliation of loss provision — trade receivables

Reconciliation of loss allowance

Amount

Loss allowance as on 01 April 2023

Add(Less): Changes in loss allowance due to assets originated or purchased
Modification of contractual cash-flows that did not result in de-recognition

Write-offs
Recoveries

Loss allowance on 31 March 2024

Add(Less): Changes in loss allowance due to assets originated or purchased
Modification of contractual cash-flows that did not result in de-recognition

Write-offs
Recoveries

Loss allowance on 31 March 2025

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or
another financial asset. The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its Habilities when they

are due.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company’s liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows. The Company takes into

account the Liquidity of the market in which the entity operates.

Maturities of financial liabilities

The tables below analyse the Company’s financial liablities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual maturities.

(Amount in ¥ lakhs)
31 March 2025 Less than 1year 1-3 years More than 3 years Total
Non-derivatives
Borrowings 17,407.52 - 17,407.52
‘Trade payable 1,594.55 - 1,594.55
Other financial liabilities 1,943.46 - 1,943.46
Total 20,945.53 - 20,945.53
31 March 2024 Less than 1year 1-3 years More than 3 years Total
Non-derivatives
Borrowings 14,047.47 - 14,047.47
Trade payable 2,507.11 - 2,507.11
Other financial habilities 1,180.41 - 1,180.41
Total 17,734.99 - 17,734.99

Market risk

The Company does not have any price, interest rate and foreign currency risks.
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A

Note - 31

Revenue related disclosures

Disaggregation of revenue

Set out below is the disaggregation of the Company’s revenue from contracts with customets:

(Amount in ¥ lakhs)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Revenue from contracts with customers
() Revenue from operations- Revenue from sale of properties 6,013.63 2,001.50
(i) Revenue from maintenance services 688.62 490.70
(iti) Other operating income (interest from customers on overdue balances) 57.29 69.01
Total revenue covered under Ind AS 115 6,759.54 2,561.21
Contract balances
The following table provides information about receivables and contract liabilities from contract with customers:
(Amount in ¥ lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Contract liabilities
 Advance from customers 3,641.56 10,168.06
Total contract liabilities 3,641.56 10,168.06
Receivables
Trade receivables 132.82 1,268.53
'Total receivables 132.82 1,268.53

Contract asset is the right 10 consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. Contract liability is the entity's obligation to transfer goods or services to 2 customer
for which the entity has received consideration from the customer in advance. Contract assets (unbilled receivables) are transferred to receivables when the rights become unconditional and
contract liabilities are recognised as and when the performance obligation is satisfied.

Significant changes in the contract liabilities balances during the year are as follows:

(Amount in ¥ lakhs)
As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Particulars . Contract liabilities Contract liabilities
Advances from customers Advances from customers
Opening balance 10,168.06 10,531.75
Addition/(refund) during the year (645.69) 369.28
Adjustment on account of revenue recognised during the year (5,880.81) (732.97)
Closing balance 3,641.56 10,168.06

The aggregate amount of transaction price allocated to the performance obligations {yet to completc) as at 31 March 2025 is 2 3,641.56 lakhs (31 March 2024 : ¥ 10,168.06 lakhs). This balance
tepresents the advance received from customers (gross) against teal estate properties. The management expects to further bill and collect the remaining balance of total considenation in the
coming years. These balances will be recognised as revenue in future years as per the policy of the Company.

Reconciliation of revenue recognised with contract revenue:

(Amount in ¥ lakhs)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Contract tevenue 6,013.63 2,001.50
Revenue from maintenance services 688.62 490.70
Revenue recognised from real estate properties 6,702.25 2,492.20

(This space has been intentionally left blank).
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All amount in  lakh, unless otherwise stated
Note - 32

Details with respect to the Benami properties;

No proceedings have been initiated or pending against the entity under the Benami Transactions (Prohibitions) Act, 1988 for the year ended 31 March 2025 and 31 Macch 2024,

Note - 33

Undisclosed income

There is no such income which has not been disclosed in the books of accounts. No such income is surrendered or disclosed as incorne during the year ended 31 March 2025 and 31 Mazch 2024 in the tax assessments
under Income Tax Act, 1961.

Note - 34

Details of Crypto Cusrency or Virtual Curren,

Profit or loss on transactions involving Ceypto currency ot Vicrual Currency No transaction dusing the year ended 31 Masch 2023 and 31 March
2024,

-Amount of currency held as at the teporting date No transaction duting the year ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March
2024.

Deposits or advances from any person for the puspose of teading ot investing in Crypto Currency / virtual currency No transaction during the year ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March
2024.

Note - 35

Ratio Analysis

The following are analytical ratios for the year ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024

Particulars N Denominator 31 March 2025 |31 March 2024 | Vaamce Remarks

Current Ratio Current Assets Current Liabilities 0.20 0.34 -39.29%] Refer note A

Debt Equity Ratio * Total Debts Shareholder's Equity NA NA Na | Not applicable

Debt Service Coverage Ratio * Eamings available for debr services Debt Service NA NA N { Not applicable

Retum on Equity (ROE) / Retum on investment # Net Profit After Taxes Average Share holder's Equity NA NA Na | Not applicable

Iaventory Tumover Ratio Net sales Average Inventory 1,21 0.31 289.99%} Refer note B

Trade Receivable Tumover Ratio Revenue Average Trade Receivable 10.52 2.38 307.56%| Refer note B

Trade Payable Tumover Ratio Purchase of services and other expenses Average Trade Payable 2.80 0.81 246.85%| Refec note B

Net Capital Tumover Ratio #% Revenue Working Capital NA NA Na | Notapplicable

Net Profit Ratio § Net profit Revenue Na NA Na [ Not applicable

Return of Capital Employed (ROCE) » Eaming before interest and taxes Capital Employed NA NA Na | Notapplicable

Retum on Investment ** Income generated from Investment Time Weighted Average investment NA NA ~Na | Not applicable

Notes:

A- Vagation is due to decrease in inventory,

B- In the real estate business, revenue along with the cortesponding cost to sales is recognised on the point in time basis and hence, the increase and deczease will not be directly ascertained basis inceease,/decrease in
business. Accordingly, the cucrent year ratios ate not compazable with previous year.

* Ratio can not be caleulated due to negative average shareholders funds dudng the curcent year as well as in previous year.
"% Ratio can not be calculated due to fAcgative eaeming available for debr secvice during the current year as well as in previous year.

Note - 36
Wilful Defaulter:
No bank or finanéial institution has declared the company as "Witful defaulter” during the year ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024,

Note - 37
Details in respect of Utilization of Borrowed funds and share premium:

Dudng the yeac ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024 o funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (cither from boerowed funds or shace premium ot any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to
ot in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“1; diaries”) with the und; ding, whether recorded in wiiting ot otherwise, that the Intermediary shall fend or invest in party identified by or
on behalf of the Company (Uttimare Beneficiaiies).

During the year ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024 the Company has not received any fund from any party(s) (Funding Party) with the understanding that the Company shall whether, directly or indirectly lend

orinvest in other persoas or entisies identified by oc on behalf of the funding party (“Ultimate Beneficiddes”) or provide any guasantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaics,

Relationship with Struck off Companies:
No transaction has been made with the company struck off under section 248 of The Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956 during the year ended 31 March 2025 and 31 Mach 2024,

Note - 39
Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies: .

All applicable cases where repistration of chacges o satisfaction is required with Registrar of Comparies have been done. No registration oc satisfaction is pending for the year ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March
2024.

Note - 40

Compliance with number of layers of companies;

The company has complied with the number of tayers prescribed undér clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017 and no fayess of companies has been
established beyond the limit prescribed as per above said seetion / rules during the year ended 31 Mazch 2025 and 31 March 2024,

Note 41
Loan or advances granted to the promoters, directors and KMPs and the related parties:

No loan o advances in the natute of loans are granted to the promoters, directors, key managerial persons and the related pacties (as defined under Companies Act, 2013), cither seveaally or joindy with any other
peeson, dudng the year ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024, that aze:

(a) repayable on demand or
() without speciying any terms or peniod of repayment
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Note — 42
Capital management

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to:
® To ensure Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, and
® To provide adequate return to shareholders

Management assesses the capital requirements in order to maintain an efficient overall financing structure. The
Company manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and
the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. The Company manages its capital requirements by reviewing its net debt
position, where net debt is equal to current borrowings — cash and cash equivalents — other bank balances.

Note — 43
Related party transactions
Relationship Name of the related parties
(2) Related parties exercising control

Embassy Developments Limited (Formerly
Holding Company Equinox India Developments Limited and earlier
Indiabulls Real Estate Limited)

(%) Other related parties

Fellow subsidiary company Citra Properties Limited
Key management personnel Mr. Shambu Singh (whole time director)
Other enterprises under the control or significant Embassy Setvices Private Limited (w.e.f. 24 January
influence of Key Management Personnel of the 2025)
holding company and their relatives with whom there Technique Control Facility Management Limited (w.ef.
were transactions 24 January 2025)

*With whom transactions have been entered during the year/ ' previous year.

(1) Statement of transactions with related parties (R in lakhs)
Nature of transactions 31 March 25 | 31 March 24
Holding Company

Loans and advances taken/(repaid), net

Embassy Developments Limited (Formerly Equinox India Developments Limited 1671.00
and earlier Indiabulls Real Estate Limited) ) T

Subsidiary Company
Citra Properties Limited 3,360.05 -
Holding Company

Interest expenses on optionally convertible debenture

Embassy Developments Limited (Formerly Equinox India Developments Limited
and eatlier Indiabulls Real Estate Limited)
Advisory services

Embassy Developments Limited (Formetly Equinox India Developments Limited 367.78
and carlier Indiabulls Real Estate Limited) ) oo

0.01 0.01




Athena Infrastructure Limited

Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatoty information for the year ended 31 March 2025

Business Support Expenses

31 March 25

31 March 24

Embassy Developments Limited (Formerly Equinox India Developments
Limited and earlier Indiabulls Real Estate Limited)

208.21

Other enterprises under the control ot significant influence of Key
Management Personnel of the holding company and theit relatives with
whom there were transactions

31 March 25

31 March 24

Site Management Fee

Embassy Services Private Limited (w.e.f. 24 January 2025)

114.26

Technique Control Facility Management Limited (w.e.f. 24 January 2025)

160.08

ii) Statement of balances outstanding:

(% in lakhs)

Nature of transactions

Loans and advances taken

31 March 25

31 Match 24

Embassy Developments Limited (Formerly Equinox India Developments
Limited and earlier Indiabulls Real Estate Limited)

14,047.47

14,047.47

Citra Properties Limited

3,360.05

Business Support Expenses

Embassy Developments Limited (Formerly Equinox India Developments
Limited and earlier Indiabulls Real Estate Limited)

89.23

Advisory setvices Income

Embassy Developments Limited (Formerly Equinox India Developments
Limited and earlier Indiabulls Real Estate Limited)

426.62

Other enterprises under the control or significant influence of Key
Management Personnel of the holding company and their relatives with
whom there were transactions

31 March 25

31 March 24

Site Management Fee*

Embassy Services Private Limited (w.e.f. 24 January 2025)

55.23

Technique Control Facility Management Limited (w.e.f. 24 January 2025)

21.58

*Includes balances prior o the date on which the entity became related party.

Disclosures in respect of transactions with identified related parties ate given only for such period during which such

relationships existed.

Note —44
Contingent liabilities and commitments

Contingent liabilities

a) The Company had received a demand of % 97.52 lakhs (31 Mazch 24:  97.52 lakhs) from the income-tax department
for the Assessment Year 2015-16 under section 201 of Income-tax Act, 1961. The Company had filed an appeal with
Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals) against the demand.

b)The Company had received a demand order of ¥ 52.96 lakhs (31 March 2024: Nil) against shott payment of tax
liability on comparison of GSTR 1 & GSTR 3B for Financial Year 2019-20, for which appeals has been filed during
FY 2024-25 with the appellate authority (Centre). Further company in view of opting GST waiver scheme u/s 128A
of CGST Act’2017 had paid the amount of TaiRgaR
penalty involved shall be waived.
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There are certain Allottees of “Enigma, Gurugram” Group housing residential project who had filed their respective
complaints and are pending adjudication before Haryana RERA, District Court Gurugram and Consumer Forums,
via, which they majorly alleged their gtievance with respect to delay to the tune of % 3,158.75 lakhs. Though, the
Company is contesting the same still a provision of ¥ 3,710.68 lakhs including interest has already been taken in the
books of accounts for Financial year 2024-25.

Apart from the above litigation, there is an arbitration matter filed by the Vendor against the Company whereby
alleging the non-payment of pending dues for the defective works done in the project. The total amount involved in
this litigation is approx. ¥ 235.00 lakhs The Company is contesting in this matter is most likelihood come in favour
of the Company

Based on the defence taken in these matters and the independent legal advice from the Counsels, the management
believes that there is a reasonably likelihood that the there is no material liability will devolve on the Company in
respect of these matters or atleast liability will not go beyond the provision which has already taken in the books of
Accounts.

There ate no other contingent liabilities to be reported as at 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024.
Commitments

The Company does not have any commitments.

Note — 45
Employee benefits

Defined contribution plan

The Company has made T 13.49 lakhs (31 March 2024 - X 6.63 lakhs) contribution in respect of provident fund and
other funds.

Defined benefit plan
The Company has the following defined benefit plans:

®  Gratuity (unfunded)
® Compensated absences (unfunded)

Risks associated with plan provisions

Discount rate risk Reduction in discount rate in subsequent valuations can increase the liability.

Mortality risk Actual death and liability cases proving lower or higher than assumed in the
valuation can impact the liabilities.

Salary risk Actual salaty increase will increase the liability. Increase in salary increase rate
assumption in future valuations will also increase the liability.

Withdrawal risk Actual withdrawals proving higher or lower than assumed withdrawals and change
of withdrawal rates at subsequent valuations can impact liability.

Compensated absences

The leave obligations cover the Company's liability for earned leaves. The amount of provision of ¥ 2.14 lakhs (31
March 2024 R 1.40 lakhs) is presented as cutrent, since the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer
settlement for any of these obligations. However, based on past experience, the Company does not expect all employees
to take the full amount of accrued leave or tequire payment within the next 12 months, therefore based on the
independent actuarial report, only a certain amount of provision has been presented as current and remaining as non-
cutrent. The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 15.32 years (31 March 2024: 15.63 years).

005[75N
New\Delhi
&
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Actuarial gain / loss on obligation: (R in lakhs)
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Actuarial gain on arising from change in demographic assumption - -
Actuarial (gain) / loss on arising from change in financial assumptions 0.30 0.42
Actuarial (gain) / loss on arising from change in experience adjustment (2.94) (0.95)
Amount recognised in the statement of profit and loss is as under: (R in lakhs)
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Current service cost 15.73 252
Interest cost 1.71 1.48
Actuarial (gain) / loss for the year (2.65) (0.53)
Expense / (teversal) recognized in the statement of profit 14.79 3.47
and loss
Movement in the liability recognized in the balance sheet is as undet: (R in lakhs)
31 Match 2025 31 March 2024
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 23.60 20.13
Current service cost 15.73 2.52
Interest cost 1.71 1.48
Actuarial (gain) / loss on obligation (2.65) (0.53)
Benefit paid (6.34) -
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 32.05 23.60
Bifurcation of projected benefit obligation at the end of the year in current and non-custent (R in lakhs)
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
2) Current liability (amount due within one year) 2.14 1.40
b) | Non - current liability (amount due over one year) 29.91 20.20
Total projected benefit obligation at the end of the year 32.05 23.60

For determination of the liability of the Company, the following actuarial assumptions were used:

Particulars Compensated absences
31 Match 2025 31 March 2024
Discount rate 7.15% 7.22%
Salary escalation rate 5.00% 5.00%
Indian Assured Indian Assured
Mortality table Lives Mortality Lives Mortality
(2012 -14) (2012 -14)

As the Company does not have any plan assets, the movement of present value of defined benefit obligation and fair

value of plan assets has not been presented.

These assumptions were developed by management with the assistance of independent actuarial appraisers. Discount
factors are determined close to each yeat-end by reference to government bonds of relevant economic markets and that

have terms to maturity apptroximating
management’s historical experience.

to the terms of the related obligation. Other assumptions ate based on

Maturity plan of Defined Benefit Obligation (X in lakhs)
Year 31 March 2025 Year 31 March 2024

a) April 2025 — March 2026 2.14 April 2024 — March 2025 1.40
b) April 2026 —~ March 2027 0.49 April 2025 — March 2026 1.99
) April 2027 — March 2028 0.49 April 2026 — March 2027 0.35
d) April 2028 — March 2029 0.50 April 2027 — March 2028 0.35
e) April 2029 — March 2030 0.47 April 2028 — March 2029 0.34
13) April 2030 — March 2031 2.38 April 2029 — March 2030 0.33
2) April 2031 onwards April 2030 onwards 18.84
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Sensitivity analysis for compensated absences liability (R in lakhs)
31 March 2025 31 Matrch 2024
Impact of the change in discount rate
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 32.05 23.60
a) Impact due to increase of 0.50 % (1.91) (1.41)
b) Impact due to decrease of 0.50 % 2.03 1.50
Impact of the change in salary increase
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 32.05 23.60
2) Impact due to increase of 0.50 % 2.08 1.54
b) Impact due to decrease of 0.50 % (1.93) (1.43)

Sensitivities due to mortality and withdrawal are not material and hence impact of change not calculated.

Gratuity

The Company provides for gratuity for employees in India as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees who
are in continuous service for a period of 5 years are eligible for gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on
retirement/ termination is the employee's last drawn basic salary per month computed proportionately for 15 days salaty
multiplied for the number of years of service. Gratuity plan is a non-funded plan. The weighted average duration of the
defined benefit obligation is 15.32 years (31 March 2024: 15.63 years).

Actuarial gain / loss recognised in other comprehensive income (% in lakhs)
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Actuarial (gain) / loss on atising from change in experience adjustment (6.95) 17.95
Amount recognised in the statement of profit and loss is as under: (R in lakhs)
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Current service cost 7.71 9.23
Interest cost 7.97 6.97
[Expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss 15.68 16.20
Movement in the liability recognized in the balance sheet is as under: (X in lakhs)
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 110.35 94.72
Current setvice cost 7.71 9.23
Interest cost 7.97 6.97
Actuarial (gain) / loss on obligation (6.95) 17.95
Benefits paid (24.91) (18.53)
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 94.17 110.34

Bifurcation of projected benefit obligation at the end of the year in cutrent and non-current

(% in lakhs)
31 Match 2025 31 March 2024
a) Current liability (amount due within one year) 6.12 6.23
b) | Non - current liability (amount due over one year) 88.05 104.12
Total projected benefit obligation at the end of the year 94.17 110.35
For determination of the liability of the Company, the following actuarial assumptions were used:
Particulars Gratuity
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Discount rate 6.99% 7.22%
Salary escalation rate 5.00% 5.00%
. Indian Assured Lives | Indian Assured Lives
i .

Mortality table Mortality (2012-14) | Mortality (2012 -14)
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As the Company does not have any plan assets
value of plan assets has not been presented.

These assumptions wete developed by manag,
factors are determined close to each year-
have terms to maturity apptoximating
management’s historical experience.

, the movement of present value of defined benefit obligation and fair

ement with the assistance of independent actuarial appraisers. Discount
end by reference to government bonds of televant economic markets and that
to the terms of the related obligation. Other assumptions are based on

Maturity plan of Defined Benefit Obligation (R in lakhs)
Year 31 March 2025 Year 31 March 2024
a) April 2025 — March 2026 6.12 April 2024 — March 2025 6.23
b) April 2026 — March 2027 1.39 April 2025 — March 2026 12.80
<) April 2027 — March 2028 1.41 April 2026 — March 2027 1.51
d) April 2028 — March 2029 1.42 April 2027 — March 2028 1.52
€) April 2029 — March 2030 1.37 April 2028 — March 2029 1.52
f) April 2030 — March 2031 6.00 April 2029 — March 2030 1.48
g April 2031 onwards 76.45 April 2030 onwards 85.30
Sensitivity analysis for gratuity liability (R in lakhs)
| 31March 2025 | 31 March 2024
Impact of the change in discount rate
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 94.17 110.35
a) Impact due to increase of 0.50 % (5.47) (6.14)
b) Impact due to decrease of 0.50 % 5.92 6.67
Impact of the change in salaty increase
Present value of obligation at the end of the yeat 94.17 110.35
a) Impact due to increase of 0.50 % 6.00 6.78
b) Impact due to decrease of 0.50 % (5.59) (6.29)

Sensitivities due to mortality and withdrawal are not material
Sensitivities as to rate of inflation, rate of increase of

and life expectancy are not applicable being a lump sum benefit on retirement.

Note-46

The Indian Parliament has approved the Code on Social Security,

company towards Provident Fund and Gratuity. The Ministry of L
the Code on Social Security,

consideration by the Ministry.
The Company will give appropriate impact in its financial statements in the period in which, the C
and the related rules to determine the financial impact ate published.

Note-47
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities pursuant to Ind AS 7 - Cash flows

The changes in the Company’s liabilities arising from financing activities can be classified as follows:

and hence impact of change not calculated.
pensions in payment, rate of increase of pensions before retirement

2020 which would impact the contributions by the
abour and Employment had released draft rules for
2020 on 13 November 2020, and invited suggestions from stakeholders which are under
The Company will assess the impact and its evaluation once the subject rules are notified.
ode becomes effective

(R in lakhs)
Current Total

Particulars borrowings

Net debt as at 01 April 2023 12,376.47 12,376.47
Proceeds from borrowings 4,208.00 4,208.00
Repayment of borrowings (2,537.00) (2,537.00)
Interest expense 0.01 0.01
Interest paid 0.01) 0.01)
Net debt as at 31 March 2024 14,047.47 14,047.47
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(R in lakhs)

Particulars Current Total
borrowings

Net debt as at 01 April 2024 14,047.47 14,047.47
Proceeds from borrowings 5,706.75 5,864.82
Repayment of bortowings (2,346.70) (2,504.77)
Interest expense 0.01 0.01
Interest paid 0.01) (0.01)
Net debt as at 31 March 2025 17,407.52 17,407.52

Note - 48

The Company is 2 wholly owned subsidiary company of Embassy Developments Limited (Formerly Equinox India
Developments Limited and earlier Indiabulls Real Estate Limited), whether directly or indirectly which is having a net
worth of ¥ 1,017,098.00 Lakhs. The Company will get all necessary support financially and otherwise from its holding
company and thus, the Company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when
they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date.

Note — 49

Audit Ttail

As per the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) notification, proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014, for the financial year commencing 01 April 2023, every company which uses accounting softwares for
maintaining its books of account, shall use only such accounting softwares which has a feature of recording audit trail of
each and every transaction, creating an edit log of each change made in the books of account along with the date when
such changes were made and ensuring that the audit trail cannot be disabled. The interpretation and guidance on what
level edit log and audit trail needs to be maintained evolved during the year and continues to evolve.

The Company has used accounting softwares for maintaining its books of account for the year, which have features of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility at application level as well as database level and the same have been operated
throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the softwares except one software where audit trial (edit
log) facility at database level was not available. Recording of audit trail (edit logs) can be disabled using restricted
privileged rights for direct data changes at database level. Since the company has other necessary controls in place,
which are operating effectively, this feature will not adversely impact its data and audit log retention directly at database
level.

Furthermore, the audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention
except that the audit trail at the database level for the Company has not been preserved in the accounting softwares for
the period from 01 April 2023 to 31 March 2024, as applicable.

Note - 50

Business combination of holding company

The Hon'ble National Company Law Appellate Tribunal, New Delhi Bench ("NCLAT"), on 7 Januaty 2025, approved
the scheme of amalgamation of Nam Estates Private Limited ("NAM") and Embassy One Commercial Property
Developments Private Limited ("EOCPDPL") with Embassy Developments Limited ("EDL") (formerly known as
Equinox India Developments Limited and earlier Indiabulls Real Estate Limited) and their respective shareholders and
creditors ("Scheme") pursuant to sec 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013, and other applicable provisions of the
Act, read with Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016. Pursuant to the NCLAT
Order, EDL and NAM have filed the certified true copy of the court order with the respective jurisdictional Registrar of
Companies on 24 January 2025, thereby giving effect to the scheme ("Effective Date").

Subsequent to the scheme becoming effective, a few of the current NAM shareholders, namely JV Holding Private
Limited (JVHPL), four individuals, and two other entities (referred to as the "Promotet/Promoter Group"), became the
largest shareholders of the EDL, the company's holding company.
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Note — 51
Segment reporting

The Company's primary business segment is reflected based on principal business activities carried on by the Company
Le. development of real estate properties and all other related activities which as per Ind AS 108 on ‘Operating
Segments’ is considered to be the only reportable business segment. The Company derives its major revenues from sale
of real estate properties and its customers are widespread. The Company is operating in India which is considered as a
single geographical segment.

Note - 52
The Company does not have detivatives instruments where there are material foreseeable losses.

Note - 53
All loans and secutities as disclosed in tespective notes ate provided for business purposes.

Note — 54
Previous year figures have been regrouped and/or reclassified wherever necessary to confirm to those of the current
year grouping and/or classification.

Note - 55

The Hon'ble Supreme Court India has passed a judgement dated 28 February 2019 and it was held that basic wages, for
the purpose of provident fund, to include allowances which are common for all employees. However, there is
uncertainty with respect to the applicability of the judgement and period from which the same applies. Currently, the
Company has not considered any impact in these financial statements.
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